UNIFI INC Form 10-Q February 02, 2007

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549 FORM 10-Q

DESCRIPTION 13 OR 15 (d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended December 24, 2006

OR	
o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SEC EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934	CTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
For the transition period fromto	
Commission File Num UNIFI, INC	
(Exact name of registrant as sp	ecified in its charter)
New York	11-2165495
(State or other jurisdiction of	(I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization)	Identification No.)
P.O. Box 19109 7201 West Friendly Avenue	27419
Greensboro, NC	(Zip Code)
(Address of principal executive offices)	
Registrant s telephone number, includ	
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all respectives Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 month required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such file Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerate filer. See definition of accelerated filer and large accelerated filer accelerated filer of the Accelerated filer of the Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company. The number of shares outstanding of the issuer is common stock 60,541,800.	s (or for such shorter period that the registrant was ing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes b No o ted filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated ler in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one): iler b Non-accelerated filer o y (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes o Nob

UNIFI, INC. Form 10-Q for the Quarterly Period Ended December 24, 2006 INDEX

			Page
<u>Part I</u> Financial Information	Item 1.	Financial Statements: Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 24, 2006 and June 25, 2006	3
		Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Quarters and Six-Months Ended December 24, 2006 and December 25, 2005	4
		Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Six-Months Ended December 24, 2006 and December 25, 2005	5
		Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements	6
	Item 2.	Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	26
	Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	40
	Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	41
Part II	Item 1.	Legal Proceedings	43
<u>Other</u> <u>Information</u>	Item 1A.	Risk Factors	43
	Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	43
	Item 4.	Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders	44
EX-31.1	Item 6.	<u>Exhibits</u>	44
EX-31.1 EX-31.2 EX-32.1 EX-32.2		2	
		4	

Table of Contents

Part. 1 Financial Information Item. 1 Financial Statements

UNIFI, INC. Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

	December 24, 2006 (Unaudited)	June 25, 2006
	(Amounts in	thousands)
ASSETS		
Current assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 35,612	\$ 35,317
Receivables, net	77,486	93,236
Inventories	115,386	116,018
Deferred income taxes	11,982	11,739
Assets held for sale	15,419	15,419
Other current assets	11,287	9,229
Total current assets	267,172	280,958
Property, plant and equipment	911,953	916,337
Less accumulated depreciation	(692,492)	(676,641)
	219,461	239,696
Investments in unconsolidated affiliates	184,210	190,217
Other noncurrent assets	22,766	21,766
Total assets	\$ 693,609	\$ 732,637
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY		
Current liabilities:		
Accounts payable	\$ 60,518	\$ 68,916
Accrued expenses	18,569	23,869
Income taxes payable	373	2,303
Current maturities of long-term debt and other current liabilities	8,056	6,330
Total current liabilities	87,516	101,418
Long-term debt and other liabilities	203,691	202,405
Deferred income taxes	44,159	45,861
Commitments and contingencies Shareholders equity:	•	,
Common stock	5,220	5,220
Capital in excess of par value	2,167	929
Retained earnings	354,487	382,082
Accumulated other comprehensive loss	(3,631)	(5,278)
	358,243	382,953

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

\$ 693,609

\$ 732,637

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.

3

Table of Contents

UNIFI, INC. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations (Unaudited)

	For the For the For the Quarters Ended				e Six-Months Ended			
	Dec. 200	24,	D	Dec. 25, 2005	I	Dec. 24, 2006		ec. 25, 2005
		(Amou	nts ii	n thousand	ls, ex	cept per sha	are da	ta)
Net sales	\$ 156	,895	\$:	191,117	\$	326,839	\$:	374,219
Cost of sales	154	,275		181,747		315,179		356,446
Selling, general & administrative expenses	10	,388		10,461		21,677		20,948
Provision (recovery) for bad debts	(1	,012)		604		598		1,131
Interest expense	-	,111		4,681		12,176		9,457
Interest income		,066)		(2,189)		(1,510)		(3,470)
Other (income) expense, net		236		303		(243)		(549)
Equity in (earnings) losses of unconsolidated						, ,		, ,
affiliates	2	,876		(18)		4,825		(1,842)
Write down of long-lived assets		,002		. ,		3,202		1,500
Restructuring charges		,				,		29
2 2								
Loss from continuing operations before income								
taxes and extraordinary item	(16	,915)		(4,472)		(29,065)		(9,431)
Benefit for income taxes	-	(540)		(1,079)		(1,673)		(1,231)
		,		() ,		, ,		() ,
Loss from continuing operations before								
extraordinary item	(16	,375)		(3,393)		(27,392)		(8,200)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations net of	`	, ,		() ,		(, ,		() ,
tax		(167)		(583)		(203)		1,346
Extraordinary gain net of taxes of \$0		()		208		()		,
, <i>g</i>								
Net loss	\$ (16	,542)	\$	(3,768)	\$	(27,595)	\$	(6,854)
		, ,	·	() ,		(, ,		() ,
Earnings (losses) per common share (basic and								
diluted):								
Net loss continuing operations	\$	(.32)	\$	(.06)	\$	(.53)	\$	(.16)
Net income (loss) discontinued operations	·	()	·	(.01)	·	()	·	.03
Extraordinary gain				()				
Zimuciania, gam								
Net loss basic and diluted	\$	(.32)	\$	(.07)	\$	(.53)	\$	(.13)
THE TODAY CHILD CHILD CHILD	Ψ	()	Ψ	(.07)	Ψ	(100)	4	(110)
Weighted average outstanding shares of common								
stock (basic and diluted)	52	,198		52,127		52,198		52,127
See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated fin		•	ents	J_,,		52,170		J_,,
211 mpm/mg notes to condensed consolidated in	4							

Table of Contents

UNIFI, INC. Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited) (Amounts in thousands)

	For the Six-Months End	
	December	December
	24,	25,
	2006	2005
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period	\$ 35,317	\$ 105,621
Operating activities:		
Net loss	(27,595)	(6,854)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by		
continuing operating activities:		
(Income) loss from discontinued operations	203	(1,346)
Net (earnings) losses of unconsolidated equity affiliates, net of distributions	4,825	288
Depreciation	21,449	24,688
Amortization	557	642
Stock based compensation	1,238	289
Net (gain) loss on asset sales	241	(365)
Non-cash write down of long-lived assets	3,202	1,500
Non-cash portion of restructuring charges		29
Deferred income tax	(1,945)	(2,533)
Provision for bad debt	598	1,131
Split dollar life insurance proceeds, net		983
Other	20	(1,275)
Change in assets and liabilities, excluding effects of acquisitions and foreign		
currency adjustments	1,357	443
Net cash provided by continuing operating activities	4,150	17,620
Investing activities:		
Capital expenditures	(3,341)	(7,614)
Acquisition	(393)	(30,388)
Investment of foreign restricted assets		158
Collection of notes receivable	734	236
Change in restricted cash		2,766
Proceeds from sale of capital assets	30	2,376
Return of capital from equity affiliates	229	
Split dollar life insurance premiums	(166)	
Other	(362)	(210)
Net cash used in investing activities	(3,269)	(32,676)
Financing activities:		
Payment of long-term debt	(290)	(24,407)
Other	(309)	40
Net cash used in financing activities	(599)	(24,367)

Cash flows of discontinued operations:		
Operating cash flow	(50)	(4,640)
Investing cash flow		23,062
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations	(50)	18,422
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents	63	399
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	295	(20,602)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$ 35,612	\$ 85,019
See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements. 5		

UNIFI, INC.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Basis of Presentation

The Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet at June 25, 2006, has been derived from the audited financial statements at that date but does not include all of the information and footnotes required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP) for complete financial statements. Except as noted with respect to the balance sheet at June 25, 2006, the information furnished is unaudited and reflects all adjustments which are, in the opinion of management, necessary to present fairly the financial position at December 24, 2006, and the results of operations and cash flows for the periods ended December 24, 2006 and December 25, 2005. Such adjustments consisted of normal recurring items necessary for fair presentation in conformity with U.S. GAAP. Preparing financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Interim results are not necessarily indicative of results for a full year. The information included in this Form 10-Q should be read in conjunction with Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 25, 2006. Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.

The significant accounting policies followed by the Company are presented on pages 57 to 62 of the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 25, 2006. These policies have not changed from the disclosure in that report.

2. Inventories

Inventories were comprised of the following (amounts in thousands):

	Ε	ecember	
		24,	
		2006	2006
Raw materials and supplies	\$	52,210	\$ 48,594
Work in process		6,204	10,144
Finished goods		56,972	57,280
	\$	115,386	\$116,018

3. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses were comprised of the following (amounts in thousands):

	December		
	24,		June 25,
		2006	2006
Payroll and fringe benefits	\$	6,785	\$ 11,112
Severance		216	576
Interest		2,608	1,984
Property taxes		48	1,722
Accrued utilities		4,331	3,225
Other		4,581	5,250

\$ 18,569 \$ 23,869

6

Table of Contents

4. Income Taxes

The Company s income tax benefit for the quarter ended December 24, 2006 resulted in an effective tax rate of 3.0% compared to a 24.1% benefit for the quarter ended December 25, 2005. The Company s income tax benefit for the year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006 resulted in an effective tax rate of 5.8% compared to a 13.0% benefit for the year-to-date period ended December 25, 2005. The primary differences between the Company s income tax benefit and the U.S. statutory rate for the quarter and year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006 were due to losses from certain foreign operations taxed at a lower effective rate and increases in the valuation allowance for North Carolina income tax credit carryforwards and capital losses.

Deferred income taxes have been provided to account for the temporary differences between financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities. The Company has established a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets for North Carolina income tax credit carryforwards and capital losses. The valuation allowance had a net increase of \$5.1 million for both the quarter and year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006 compared to increases of \$0.1 million and \$0.4 million for the quarter and year-to-date period ended December 25, 2005, respectively. The increases for the quarter and year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006 resulted from lower estimates of future utilization of North Carolina income tax credit carryforwards as well as a complete offset of deductible temporary differences with respect to certain capital losses.

5. Comprehensive Income/Loss

Comprehensive losses amounted to \$15.2 million and \$25.9 million for the second quarter and year-to-date periods of fiscal year 2007, respectively, compared to a comprehensive loss of \$7.1 million for the second quarter and comprehensive income of \$1.0 million for the year-to-date periods of fiscal year 2006. Comprehensive losses were comprised of net losses of \$16.5 million and \$27.6 million for the current second quarter and year-to-date periods of fiscal year 2007, respectively, and foreign translation gains of \$1.3 million and \$1.7 million, respectively. Comparatively, comprehensive income and loss for the corresponding periods in the prior year were derived from net losses of \$3.7 million and \$6.8 million, and foreign translation losses of \$3.4 million and gains of \$7.8 million. The Company does not provide income taxes on the impact of currency translations as earnings from foreign subsidiaries are deemed to be permanently invested.

6. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (FIN 48) which is an interpretation of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 109 Accounting for Income Taxes. The pronouncement creates a single model to address accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 prescribes a minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company will adopt FIN 48 as of the first day of fiscal year 2008 and it has not determined the impact of FIN 48 on its results of operations and financial condition.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans. SFAS No. 158 amends SFAS No. 87, Employers Accounting for Pensions, SFAS No. 88, Employers Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits, SFAS No. 106, Employers Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions and SFAS No. 132, Employers Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits. The amendments retain most of the existing measurement and disclosure guidance and will not change the amounts recognized in the

Company s statements of operations. SFAS No.

7

158 requires companies to recognize a net asset or liability with an offset to equity relating to post retirement obligations. This aspect of SFAS No. 158 is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2006. The Company currently does not expect that SFAS No. 158 will have a material effect on its consolidated balance sheet.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. This new standard provides guidance for measuring the fair value of assets and liabilities and is intended to provide increased consistency in how fair value determinations are made under various existing accounting standards. SFAS No. 157 also expands financial statement disclosure requirements about a company s use of fair value measurements, including the effect of such measures on earnings. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. While the Company is currently evaluating the provisions of SFAS No. 157 it has not determined the impact it will have on its results of operations or financial condition.

7. Segment Disclosures

The following is the Company s selected segment information for the quarters and six-month periods ended December 24, 2006 and December 25, 2005 (amounts in thousands):

	Polyester	Nylon	Total
Quarter ended December 24, 2006:	-	•	
Net sales to external customers	\$118,507	\$ 38,388	\$156,895
Intersegment net sales	1,485	1,268	2,753
Write down of long-lived assets	2,002		2,002
Segment operating loss	(8,940)	(830)	(9,770)
Total assets	337,251	119,497	456,748
Quarter ended December 25, 2005:			
Net sales to external customers	\$146,789	\$ 44,328	\$191,117
Intersegment net sales	1,076	1,227	2,303
Segment operating loss	(279)	(812)	(1,091)
Total assets	375,716	134,900	510,616

The following table represents reconciliations from segment data to consolidated reporting data (amounts in thousands):

	For the Quarters Ended		
	December	D	ecember
	24,		25,
	2006	2005	
Reconciliation of segment operating loss to net loss from continuing operations			
before income taxes and extraordinary item:			
Reportable segments operating loss	\$ (9,770)	\$	(1,091)
Provision (recovery) for bad debts	(1,012)		604
Interest expense, net	5,045		2,492
Other (income) expense, net	236		303
Equity in (earnings) losses of unconsolidated affiliates	2,876		(18)
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes and extraordinary item	\$ (16,915)	\$	(4,472)

Table of Contents

	Polyester	Nylon	Total
Six-Months ended December 24, 2006:			
Net sales to external customers	\$248,978	\$77,861	\$326,839
Intersegment net sales	3,914	3,096	7,010
Write down of long-lived assets	2,002		2,002
Segment operating loss	(10,619)	(1,400)	(12,019)
Six-Months ended December 25, 2005:			
Net sales to external customers	\$280,957	\$93,262	\$374,219
Intersegment net sales	2,756	2,406	5,162
Write down of long-lived assets		1,500	1,500
Restructuring charges (recovery)	47	(18)	29
Segment operating loss	(1,475)	(3,229)	(4,704)

The following table represents reconciliations from segment data to consolidated reporting data (amounts in thousands):

	For the Six-Months Ended		
	December	De	ecember
	24,		25,
	2006		2005
Reconciliation of segment operating loss to net loss from continuing operations			
before income taxes and extraordinary item:			
Reportable segments operating loss	\$ (12,019)	\$	(4,704)
Provision for bad debts	598		1,131
Interest expense, net	10,666		5,987
Other (income) expense, net	(243)		(549)
Equity in (earnings) losses of unconsolidated affiliates	4,825		(1,842)
Write down of long-lived assets	1,200		
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes and extraordinary item	\$ (29,065)	\$	(9,431)

For purposes of internal management reporting, segment operating loss represents net sales less cost of sales and allocated selling, general and administrative expenses. Certain indirect manufacturing and selling, general and administrative costs are allocated to the operating segments based on activity drivers relevant to the respective costs. Intersegment sales of the Company s polyester partially orientated yarn (POY) business are recorded at market value whereas all other intersegment sales are recorded at cost.

The primary differences between the segmented financial information of the operating segment as reported to management and the Company s consolidated reporting relate to intersegment sales of yarn and the associated fiber costs, the provision for bad debts, and certain unallocated selling, general and administrative expenses.

Fiber costs of the Company s domestic operating divisions are valued on a standard cost basis, which approximates first-in, first-out accounting. For those components of inventory valued utilizing the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method, an adjustment is made at the segment level to record the difference between standard cost and LIFO. Segment operating loss excluded the recovery for bad debts of \$1.0 million and a provision of \$0.6 million for the current and prior year second quarter periods, respectively, and a provision of \$0.6 million and \$1.1 million for the current and prior year-to-date periods, respectively.

Table of Contents

15

Table of Contents

The total assets for the polyester segment decreased from \$359.2 million at June 25, 2006 to \$337.3 million at December 24, 2006 due primarily to decreases in accounts receivable, fixed assets, inventory, and deferred taxes of \$11.5 million, \$10.2 million, \$2.3 million, and \$0.1 million, respectively. These decreases were offset by increases in other current assets, other assets, and cash of \$1.2 million, \$0.9 million, and \$0.1 million, respectively. The total assets for the nylon segment decreased from \$128.2 million at June 25, 2006 to \$119.5 million at December 24, 2006 due primarily to decreases in fixed assets and accounts receivable of \$6.9 million and \$3.9 million, respectively. These decreases were offset by increases in inventory, cash, deferred income taxes, and other current assets of \$1.5 million, \$0.2 million, \$0.2 million, and \$0.2 million, respectively.

8. Stock-Based Compensation

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006, the Board authorized the issuance of one hundred fifty thousand stock options from the 1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan. During the first half of fiscal year 2005, the Board authorized the issuance of approximately 2.1 million stock options from the 1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan to certain key employees. The stock options granted in fiscal years 2006 and 2005 vest in three equal installments: the first one-third at the time of grant, the next one-third on the first anniversary of the grant and the final one-third on the second anniversary of the grant.

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2007, the Board authorized the issuance of approximately 1.1 million stock options from the 1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan to certain key employees. With the exception of the immediate vesting of three hundred thousand stock options granted to the CEO, the remaining stock options vests in three equal installments: the first one-third at the time of grant, the next one-third on the first anniversary of the grant and the final one-third on the second anniversary of the grant. As a result of these grants, the Company incurred \$0.2 million in the second quarter and \$1.2 million for the year-to-date period in stock-based compensation charges which were recorded as selling, general and administrative expense with the offset to additional paid-in-capital.

9. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company accounts for derivative contracts and hedging activities under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (SFAS No. 133) which requires all derivatives to be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. If the derivative is a hedge, changes in the fair value of derivatives are either offset against the change in fair value of the hedged assets, liabilities or firm commitments through earnings. The Company does not enter into derivative financial instruments for trading purposes nor is it a party to any leveraged financial instruments.

The Company conducts its business in various foreign currencies. As a result, it is subject to the transaction exposure that arises from foreign exchange rate movements between the dates that foreign currency transactions are recorded (export sales and purchase commitments) and the dates they are settled (cash receipts and cash disbursements in foreign currencies). The Company utilizes some natural hedging to mitigate these transaction exposures. The Company also enters into foreign currency forward contracts for the purchase and sale of European, Canadian, Brazilian and other currencies to hedge balance sheet and income statement currency exposures. These contracts are principally entered into for the purchase of inventory and equipment and the sale of Company products into export markets. Counterparties for these instruments are major financial institutions.

Currency forward contracts are entered into to hedge exposure for sales in foreign currencies based on specific sales orders with customers or for anticipated sales activity for a future time period. Generally, 50% of the sales value of these orders is covered by forward contracts. Maturity dates of the forward contracts attempt to match anticipated receivable collections. The Company marks the outstanding accounts receivable and forward contracts to market at month end and any realized and unrealized gains

10

Table of Contents

or losses are recorded as other income and expense. The Company also enters currency forward contracts for committed or anticipated equipment and inventory purchases. Generally, 50% of the asset cost is covered by forward contracts although 100% of the asset cost may be covered by contracts in certain instances. Forward contracts are matched with the anticipated date of delivery of the assets and gains and losses are recorded as a component of the asset cost for purchase transactions when the Company is firmly committed. The latest maturity date for all outstanding purchase and sales foreign currency forward contracts is February 2007.

The dollar equivalent of these forward currency contracts and their related fair values are detailed below (amounts in thousands):

	cember 24, 2006	ne 25,
Foreign currency purchase contracts:		
Notional amount	\$ 916	\$ 526
Fair value	925	535
Net (gain) loss	\$ (9)	\$ (9)
Foreign currency sales contracts:		
Notional amount	\$ 611	\$ 833
Fair value	423	878
Net (gain) loss	\$ (188)	\$ 45

For the quarters ended December 24, 2006 and December 25, 2005, the total impact of foreign currency related items on the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations, including transactions that were hedged and those that were not hedged, resulted in a pre-tax income of \$0.1 million and \$0.0, respectively. For the year-to-date periods ended December 24, 2006 and December 25, 2005, the total impact of foreign currency related items was pre-tax income of \$0.1 million and pre-tax loss of \$0.1 million, respectively.

10. Investments in Unconsolidated Affiliates

On June 10, 2005, Unifi and Sinopec Yizheng Chemical Fiber Co., Ltd. (YCFC) entered into an Equity Joint Venture Contract (the JV Contract), to form Yihua Unifi Fibre Company Limited (YUFI) to manufacture, process and market polyester filament yarn in YCFC s facilities in Yizheng, Jiangsu Province, Peoples Republic of China. Under the terms of the JV Contract, each company owns a 50% equity interest in the joint venture. The joint venture transaction closed on August 3, 2005, and accordingly, the Company contributed to YUFI its initial capital contribution of \$15.0 million in cash on August 4, 2005. On October 12, 2005, the Company transferred an additional \$15.0 million to YUFI to complete the capitalization of the joint venture. For the quarter and year-to-date periods ended December 24, 2006, the Company recognized net equity losses relating to YUFI of \$2.1 million and \$3.6 million, respectively, compared to a net equity loss of \$1.0 million for the quarter ended December 25, 2005. Since YUFI reports its financial results on a one month lag, and given the date of the joint venture transaction, the December 25, 2005 year-to-date net equity loss of \$1.1 million is not comparable. The Company also records revenues from the joint venture under a licensing agreement for certain proprietary information including technical knowledge, manufacturing processes, trade secrets, commercial information and other information relating to the design, manufacture, application testing, maintenance and sale of products. For the quarter and year-to-date periods ended December 24, 2006, the Company recorded \$0.4 million and \$0.8 million, respectively, in revenues from the licensing agreement. In addition, the Company recognized

\$1.0 million and \$2.1 million in operating expenses for the second quarter and year-to-date periods of fiscal year 2007, which were primarily reflected on the Cost of

11

Table of Contents

sales line item in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations. These expenses are directly related to providing technological support in accordance with the JV Contract.

In June 1997, the Company and Parkdale Mills, Inc. entered into a contribution agreement whereby both companies contributed all of the assets of their spun cotton yarn operations utilizing open-end and air jet spinning technologies to create Parkdale America, LLC (PAL). In exchange for its contributions, the Company received a 34% ownership interest in the joint venture. PAL is a producer of cotton and synthetic yarns for sale to the textile and apparel industries primarily within North America. PAL has 11 manufacturing facilities primarily located in central and western North Carolina. During the second quarter and year-to-date periods ended December 24, 2006, the Company had equity losses relating to PAL of \$0.6 million and \$0.9 million, respectively, compared to earnings of \$1.2 million and \$3.3 million for the corresponding periods in the prior year. PAL has paid the Company \$0.2 million in accumulated distributions during fiscal year 2007.

In September 2000, the Company and SANS Fibres of South Africa formed a 50/50 joint venture (UNIFI-SANS Technical Fibers, LLC or USTF) to produce low-shrinkage high tenacity nylon 6.6 light denier industrial (LDI) yarns in North Carolina. The business is operated in a plant in Stoneville, North Carolina which is owned by the Company. The Company receives annual rental income of \$0.3 million from USTF for the use of the facility. Unifi manages the day-to-day production and shipping of the LDI produced in North Carolina and SANS Fibres handles technical support and sales. Sales from this entity are primarily to customers in the Americas. The Company has a put right under the USTF operating agreement to sell its entire interest in the joint venture at fair market value and the related Stoneville, North Carolina manufacturing facility for \$3.0 million in cash to SANS Fibres. Per the agreement, after December 31, 2006, the Company must give one year s prior written notice of its election to exercise the put option. SANS Fibres has a call right upon the same terms as the Company s put right. See Footnote 18, Subsequent Events for further discussions of USTF.

In September 2000, Unifi and Nilit Ltd., located in Israel, formed a 50/50 joint venture named U.N.F. Industries Ltd (UNF). The joint venture produces nylon partially oriented yarn (POY) at Nilit s manufacturing facility in Migdal Ha Emek, Israel. The nylon POY is utilized in the Company s nylon texturing and covering operations. The nylon segment has a supply agreement with UNF which expires in April 2008.

Condensed balance sheet information as of December 24, 2006, and income statement information for the quarter and year-to-date periods ended December 24, 2006, of the combined unconsolidated equity affiliates was as follows (amounts in thousands):

	As of December 24, 2006
Current assets	\$ 153,142
Noncurrent assets	201,233
Current liabilities	45,839
Noncurrent liabilities	12,212
Shareholders equity and capital accounts	296,324
12	

	For the Quarter Ended December 24, 2006	For the Six-Months Ended December 24, 2006		
Net sales	\$ 138,170	\$ 295,357		
Gross profit	559	2,018		
Loss from operations	(5,058)	(8,956)		
Net loss	(6,363)	(10,759)		

11. Severance and Restructuring Charges

On April 20, 2006, the Company re-organized its domestic business operations, and as a result, recorded a restructuring charge for severance of approximately \$0.8 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006. Approximately 45 management level salaried employees were affected by this reorganization.

Accrued restructuring relates to lease costs associated with the closure of a facility in Altamahaw, North Carolina. The lease payments are due on a quarterly basis with a final balloon payment due May 2008.

The table below summarizes changes to the accrued severance and accrued restructuring accounts for the year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006 (amounts in thousands):

	Balance at June 25, 2006	Charges	Adjustments	Amounts Used	Balance at December 24, 2006
Accrued severance	\$ 576	\$	\$ 138	\$ (497)	\$ 217
Accrued restructuring	\$ 3,550	\$	\$ 116	\$ (498)	\$ 3,168

12. Impairment Charges

In November 2006, the Company s Brazilian operation decided to modernize its facilities by replacing ten of its older machines with newer machines purchased from the domestic polyester division. These machine purchases will allow the Brazilian facility to produce tailor made products at higher speeds resulting in lower costs and increased competitiveness. In connection with the preparation of the financial statements included in this report, the Company concluded that it was required to recognize a \$2.0 million impairment charge on the older machines in the second quarter ended December 24, 2006. The impairment charge is related to the book value of the machines and the related dismantling and removal costs.

On October 26, 2006 the Company announced its intent to sell a manufacturing facility that the Company had leased to a tenant since 1999. The lease expired in October 2006 and the Company decided to sell the property upon expiration of the lease. Pursuant to this determination, the Company received appraisals relating to the property and performed an impairment review in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (SFAS No. 144). The Company evaluated the recoverability of the long-lived asset and determined that the carrying amount of the property exceeded its fair value. Accordingly, the Company recorded a non-cash impairment charge of \$1.2 million during the first quarter of fiscal year 2007, which included \$0.1 million in estimated selling costs that will be paid from the proceeds of the sale when it occurs.

Table of Contents

During the quarter ended September 25, 2005 management decided to consolidate its domestic nylon operations to improve overall operating efficiencies. This initiative included closing Plant 1 in Mayodan, North Carolina and moving its operations and offices to Plant 3 in Madison, North Carolina which is the Nylon division s largest facility with over one million square feet of production space. As a part of the consolidation plan, three nylon facilities were vacated and classified as held for sale later in fiscal year 2006. The Company received appraisals on the three properties, and after reviewing the reports, determined that one of the facility s carrying value exceeded its appraised value. As a result of this determination, the Company recorded a non-cash impairment charge of \$1.5 million in the first quarter of fiscal year 2006 which included \$0.2 million of estimated selling costs.

13. Assets Held for Sale

The Company announced in the quarter ended September 25, 2005 that the nylon division decided to consolidate its operating facilities in Mayodan and Madison, North Carolina. As a result, Plant 1, Plant 5, Plant 7, and the central distribution center (the CDC) were completely vacated as of March 2006 and listed for sale. In addition, unrelated to the nylon restructuring plan, the Company decided to market other properties in Yadkinville, North Carolina and Staunton, Virginia as well as related idle machinery and equipment. The listing contract for real property was signed in December 2005 and was extended to expire in June 2007. The sale of the CDC and the Staunton, Virginia properties closed in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006.

The following table summarizes by category assets held for sale (amounts in thousands):

	24, 2006	June 25, 2006
Land	\$ 612	\$ 612
Building	10,052	10,052
Machinery and equipment	4,238	4,238
Leasehold improvements	517	517
	\$ 15,419	\$ 15,419

14. Retirement Plan

The Company s subsidiary in Ireland had a defined benefit plan (the DB Plan) that covered substantially all of its employees and was funded by both employer and employee contributions. The DB Plan provided defined retirement benefits based on years of service and the highest three year average of earnings over the ten year period preceding retirement. During the first quarter of fiscal year 2005, the Company announced plans to close its operations in Europe (the European Division), and as a result, recognized a previously unrecognized net actuarial loss of \$9.4 million. As of June 26, 2005, the subsidiary had terminated substantially all of its employees. During fiscal year 2006, the Company s Irish subsidiary made its final contribution of \$6.1 million to the DB Plan and the remaining accumulated benefit obligation of \$32.5 million was paid in full through the purchase of annuity contracts for all of the European Division participants in the DB Plan. See Note 16 Discontinued Operations for further discussion of the closure.

14

Table of Contents

The net periodic pension expense recognized in the second quarter and six-month period of fiscal years 2007 and 2006 is as follows (amounts in thousands):

	For the Q	uarters Ended	For the Six-Months End		
	December	December December		December	
	24,	25,	24,	25,	
	2006	2005	2006	2005	
Pension expense:					
Service cost	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Interest costs		596		1,208	
Expected return on plan assets		(596)		(1,208)	
Plan curtailment					
N	do.	do.	Φ.	Φ.	
Net periodic pension expense	\$	\$	\$	\$	

15. Long-Term Debt

In May 2006, the Company amended its asset-based revolving credit facility with a senior secured asset-based revolving credit facility (the Amended Credit Agreement) to provide a \$100 million revolving borrowing base (with an option to increase borrowing capacity up to \$150 million), to extend its maturity from 2006 to 2011, and to revise some of its other terms and covenants. The Amended Credit Agreement is secured by first-priority liens on the Company s and its subsidiary guarantors inventory, accounts receivable, general intangibles (other than uncertificated capital stock of subsidiaries and other persons), investment property (other than capital stock of subsidiaries and other persons), chattel paper, documents, instruments, supporting obligations, letter of credit rights, deposit accounts and other related personal property and all proceeds relating to any of the above, and by second-priority liens, subject to permitted liens, on the Company s and its subsidiary guarantors assets securing its 11.5% senior secured notes and guarantees on a first-priority basis, in each case other than certain excluded assets. The Company s ability to borrow under the Company s Amended Credit Agreement is limited to a borrowing base equal to specified percentages of eligible accounts receivable and inventory and is subject to other conditions and limitations.

As of December 24, 2006, the Company had no outstanding borrowings and had availability of approximately \$82.8 million under the terms of the Amended Credit Agreement. Borrowings under the amended Credit Agreement bear interest at rates selected periodically by the Company of LIBOR plus 1.50% to 2.25% and/or prime plus 0.00% to 0.50%. The interest rate matrix is based on the Company s excess availability under the Amended Credit Agreement. The interest rate in effect at December 24, 2006, was 6.6%. Under the Amended Credit Agreement, the Company pays an unused line fee ranging from 0.25% to 0.35% per annum of the borrowing base.

The Amended Credit Agreement contains affirmative and negative customary covenants for asset based loans that restrict future borrowings and capital spending. Such covenants include, without limitation, restrictions and limitations on (i) sales of assets, consolidation, merger, dissolution and the issuance of our capital stock, each subsidiary guarantor and any domestic subsidiary thereof, (ii) permitted encumbrances on our property, each subsidiary guarantor and any domestic subsidiary thereof, (iii) the incurrence of indebtedness by the Company, any subsidiary guarantor or any domestic subsidiary thereof, (iv) the making of loans or investments by the Company, any subsidiary guarantor or any domestic subsidiary thereof, (v) the declaration of dividends and redemptions by the Company or any subsidiary guarantor and (vi) transactions with affiliates by the Company or any subsidiary guarantor. As of December 24, 2006, the Company was in compliance with the loan covenants.

15

On May 26, 2006, the Company issued \$190 million of 11.5% senior secured notes (2014 notes) which mature on May 15, 2014. These notes were issued to substantially replace \$250 million of senior, unsecured debt securities that were due February 2008. The 2014 notes and guarantees are secured by first-priority liens, subject to permitted liens, on substantially all of the Company s and the Company s subsidiary guarantors assets (other than the assets securing the Company s obligations under the Company s Amended Credit Agreement on a first-priority basis, which consist primarily of accounts receivable and inventory), including, but not limited to, property, plant and equipment, the capital stock of the Company s domestic subsidiaries and certain of the Company s joint ventures and up to 65% of the voting stock of the Company s first-tier foreign subsidiaries, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, except for certain excluded assets. The 2014 notes are unconditionally guaranteed on a senior, secured basis by each of the Company s existing and future restricted domestic subsidiaries. The 2014 notes and guarantees are secured by second-priority liens, subject to permitted liens, on the Company and its subsidiary guarantors assets that will secure the notes and guarantees on a first-priority basis. The Company may redeem some or all of the 2014 notes on or after May 15, 2010. In addition, prior to May 15, 2009, the Company may redeem up to 35% of the principal amount of the 2014 notes with the proceeds of certain equity offering. The estimated fair value of the 2014 notes, based on quoted market prices, at December 24, 2006 and June 25, 2006, was approximately \$172.0 million and \$182.4 million, respectively. The Company makes semi-annual interest payments of \$10.9 million on the fifteenth business day of November and May.

16. Discontinued Operations

On July 28, 2005, the Company announced that it would discontinue the operations of the Company's external sourcing business, Unimatrix Americas. As of March 26, 2006, management s plan to exit the business was successfully completed resulting in the reclassification of the segment s losses as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

On July 28, 2004, the Company announced its decision to close its European Division. The manufacturing facilities in Ireland ceased operations on October 31, 2004. The Company is in the process of settling its final obligations at this time.

Results of operations for the sourcing segment and European Division for the second quarter and year-to-date periods of fiscal years 2007 and 2006 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

	For the Quarters Ended			For the Six-Months Ended				
	December Dec		Dece	December De		ember	D	ecember
		24,	25	5,	24,			25,
	2	006	20	05	2	2006		2005
Net sales	\$		\$		\$		\$	
Income (loss) from discontinued operations before income taxes Income tax expense		(167)		(583)		(203)		1,346
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax	\$	(167)	\$	(583)	\$	(203)	\$	1,346

17. Commitments and Contingencies

On September 30, 2004, the Company completed its acquisition of the polyester filament manufacturing assets located in Kinston, North Carolina from INVISTA S.a.r.l. (INVISTA). The land for the Kinston site is leased pursuant to a 99 year ground lease (Ground Lease) with E.I. DuPont de Nemours (DuPont). Since 1993, DuPont

has been investigating and cleaning up the Kinston site under the supervision of the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources pursuant to the Resource Conservation and Recovery

16

Table of Contents

Act Corrective Action program. The Corrective Action Program requires DuPont to identify all potential areas of environmental concern (AOCs), assess the extent of contamination at the identified AOCs and clean them up to comply with applicable regulatory standards. Under the terms of the Ground Lease, upon completion by DuPont of required remedial action, ownership of the Kinston site will pass to the Company. Thereafter, the Company will have responsibility for future remediation requirements, if any, at the AOCs previously addressed by DuPont. At this time the Company has no basis to determine if and when it will have any responsibility or obligation with respect to the AOCs or the extent of any potential liability for the same.

18. Subsequent Events

Effective January 1, 2007, Unifi Manufacturing, Inc. (UMI), one of the Company s wholly owned subsidiaries, completed its acquisition of certain assets and assumed certain liabilities from Dillon Yarn Corporation (Dillon), related to or used in Dillon s textured nylon and polyester yarn businesses. The aggregate consideration paid in connection with the Dillon acquisition was \$62.6 million; consisting of a combination of \$42.1 million in cash, and 8.3 million shares of the Company s common stock valued at \$20.5 million.

On January 2, 2007, the Company borrowed \$43.0 million under the Amended Credit Agreement to finance the purchase of the Dillon assets located in Dillon, South Carolina. The borrowings were derived from two separate LIBOR rate revolving loans; a \$15.0 million, 6.576%, thirty day loan and a \$28.0 million, 6.596%, 60 day loan. The Company intends to renew the loans as they come due reducing the outstanding borrowings as cash generated from operations becomes available.

On January 2, 2007, the Company notified SANS Fibres that it was exercising its put right to sell its interest in the joint venture. Negotiations to determine an agreeable price for the Company s interest in the joint venture will begin during the Company s third quarter of fiscal year 2007 with an anticipated transaction completion date in the third quarter of fiscal year 2008. The Company does not expect to report a material gain or loss on the transaction.

19. Condensed Consolidated Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Financial Statements

The guarantor subsidiaries presented below represent the Company s subsidiaries that are subject to the terms and conditions outlined in the indenture governing the Company s issuance of 2014 notes and the guarantees, jointly and severally, on a senior secured basis. The non-guarantor subsidiaries presented below represent the foreign subsidiaries which do not guarantee the notes. Each subsidiary guarantor is 100% owned, directly or indirectly, by Unifi, Inc. and all guarantees are full and unconditional.

Supplemental financial information for the Company and its guarantor subsidiaries and non-guarantor subsidiaries of the 2014 notes is presented below.

17

UNIFI, INC. NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance Sheet Information as of December 24, 2006 (amounts in thousands):

ASSETS	Parent	t		uarantor bsidiaries		Guarantor osidiaries	Eli	iminations	Co	nsolidated
Current assets:	¢ 22.14	11	ф	2.252	¢	11 210	Φ		¢	25 (12
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 22,14	+1	\$	2,252 60,458	\$	11,219 17,028	\$		\$	35,612 77,486
Receivables, net Inventories				84,646		30,740				115,386
Deferred income taxes				10,043		1,939				11,982
Assets held for sale				15,419		1,737				15,419
Other current assets				3,204		8,083				11,287
				,		,				,
Total current assets	22,14	1		176,022		69,009				267,172
Property, plant and equipment	11,80)6		843,803		56,344				911,953
Less accumulated depreciation	(1,69			(652,274)		(38,521)				(692,492)
Investments in unconsolidated	10,10)9		191,529		17,823				219,461
affiliates Investments in consolidated				156,182		28,028				184,210
subsidiaries	428,48	86						(428,486)		
Other noncurrent assets	64,67			4,331		8,991		(55,235)		22,766
	\$ 525,41	.5	\$	528,064	\$	123,851	\$	(483,721)	\$	693,609
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY Current liabilities:										
Accounts payable and other	\$ 75	59	\$	51,977	\$	7,782	\$		\$	60,518
Accrued expenses	2,75			12,674	·	3,142	·		·	18,569
Income taxes payable (receivable) Current maturities of long-term	(11,42	23)		10,571		1,225				373
debt and other current liabilities				292		7,764				8,056
Total current liabilities	(7,91	.1)		75,514		19,913				87,516
Long-term debt and other										
liabilities	191,27			54,619		13,034		(55,235)		203,691
Deferred income taxes	(16,19			59,130		1,219		(100 100		44,159
Shareholders / invested equity	358,24	13		338,801		89,685		(428,486)		358,243
	\$ 525,41	.5	\$	528,064	\$	123,851	\$	(483,721)	\$	693,609

18

UNIFI, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Balance Sheet Information as of June 25, 2006 (amounts in thousands):

ASSETS	Parent	Guarantor Subsidiaries	Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated
Current assets:					
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 22,992	\$ 1,392	\$ 10,933	\$	\$ 35,317
Receivables, net	1	72,332	20,903		93,236
Inventories		91,840	24,178		116,018
Deferred income taxes		10,473	1,266		11,739
Assets held for sale		15,419			15,419
Other current assets		2,558	6,671		9,229
Total current assets	22,993	194,014	63,951		280,958
Property, plant and equipment	11,806	848,068	56,463		916,337
Less accumulated depreciation	(1,553)	(637,487)	(37,601)		(676,641)
Less accumulated depreciation	(1,333)	(037,487)	(37,001)		(070,041)
Investments in unconsolidated	10,253	210,581	18,862		239,696
affiliates		157,741	32,476		190,217
Investments in consolidated					
subsidiaries	450,655			(450,655)	
Other noncurrent assets	65,713	8,116	8,223	(60,286)	21,766
	\$ 549,614	\$ 570,452	\$ 123,512	\$ (510,941)	\$ 732,637
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY Current liabilities:					
Accounts payable and other	\$ 1,698	\$ 57,315	\$ 9,903	\$	\$ 68,916
Accrued expenses	2,202	18,011	3,656		23,869
Income taxes payable (receivable) Current maturities of long-term	(10,046)	11,004	1,345		2,303
debt and other current liabilities		290	6,040		6,330
Total current liabilities	(6,146)	86,620	20,944		101,418
Long-term debt and other					
liabilities	191,273	57,557	13,861	(60,286)	202,405
Deferred income taxes	(18,466)	63,380	947	(00,200)	45,861
Shareholders / invested equity	382,953	362,895	87,760	(450,655)	382,953
Shareholders / myested equity	304,933	302,093	07,700	(430,033)	302,933

\$549,614 \$ 570,452 \$ 123,512 \$ (510,941) \$ 732,637

19

UNIFI, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Statement of Operations Information for the Fiscal Quarter Ended December 24, 2006 (amounts in thousands):

	Parent	Guarantor Subsidiaries		Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries		Eliminations		Consolidated	
Summary of Operations:									
Net sales	\$	\$	129,432	\$	27,922	\$	(459)	\$	156,895
Cost of sales			130,361		24,546		(632)		154,275
Selling, general and administrative									
expenses			8,685		1,631		72		10,388
Provision (recovery) for bad debts			(545)		(467)				(1,012)
Interest expense	5,938		172		1				6,111
Interest income	(168)				(898)				(1,066)
Other (income) expense, net	(4,335)		3,769		302		500		236
Equity in (earnings) losses of									
unconsolidated affiliates			395		2,581		(100)		2,876
Equity in subsidiaries	16,707						(16,707)		
Write down of long-lived assets					2,002				2,002
Income (loss) from continuing									
operations before income taxes	(18,142)		(13,405)		(1,776)		16,408		(16,915)
Provision (benefit) for income	(10,142)		(13,403)		(1,770)		10,400		(10,713)
taxes	(1,600)		821		239				(540)
tunes	(1,000)		021		237				(340)
Income (loss) from continuing									
operations	(16,542)		(14,226)		(2,015)		16,408		(16,375)
Income (loss) from discontinued	, , ,		. , ,		() /		,		, ,
operations, net of tax					(167)				(167)
•					, ,				, ,
Net income (loss)	\$ (16,542)	\$	(14,226)	\$	(2,182)	\$	16,408	\$	(16,542)
			20						

UNIFI, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Statement of Operations Information for the Fiscal Quarter Ended December 25, 2005 (amounts in thousands):

	Parent	Guarantor Subsidiaries						Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries		Eliminations		nsolidated
Summary of Operations:												
Net sales	\$	\$	166,089	\$ 25,977	\$	(949)	\$	191,117				
Cost of sales			158,953	23,584		(790)		181,747				
Selling, general and administrative												
expenses	71		8,977	1,627		(214)		10,461				
Provision for bad debts			571	33				604				
Interest expense	4,564		97	20				4,681				
Interest income	(524)		(27)	(1,638)				(2,189)				
Other (income) expense, net	(4,896)		4,179	969		51		303				
Equity in (earnings) losses of												
unconsolidated affiliates			(1,306)	1,288				(18)				
Equity in subsidiaries	4,172					(4,172)						
Income (loss) from continuing												
operations before income taxes	(3,387)		(5,355)	94		4,176		(4,472)				
Provision (benefit) for income												
taxes	381		(2,005)	545				(1,079)				
Income (loss) from continuing												
operations	(3,768)		(3,350)	(451)		4,176		(3,393)				
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax			(313)	(270)				(583)				
Extraordinary gain (loss) net of			(313)	(270)				(363)				
taxes of \$0			208					208				
Net income (loss)	\$ (3,768)	\$	(3,455)	\$ (721)	\$	4,176	\$	(3,768)				
			21									

UNIFI, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Statement of Operations Information for the Six-Months Ended December 24, 2006 (amounts in thousands):

	Parent	Guarantor Subsidiaries		Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries		Eliminations		Consolidated	
Summary of Operations:									
Net sales	\$	\$	268,957	\$	59,263	\$	(1,381)	\$	326,839
Cost of sales			264,848		51,693		(1,362)		315,179
Selling, general and administrative									
expenses			18,607		3,152		(82)		21,677
Provision (recovery) for bad debts			543		55				598
Interest expense	11,867		308		1				12,176
Interest income	(272)				(1,238)				(1,510)
Other (income) expense, net	(8,723)		7,839		(106)		747		(243)
Equity in (earnings) losses of									
unconsolidated affiliates			506		4,563		(244)		4,825
Equity in subsidiaries	23,816						(23,816)		
Write down of long-lived assets			1,200		2,002				3,202
Income (loss) from continuing									
operations before income taxes	(26,688)		(24,894)		(859)		23,376		(29,065)
Provision (benefit) for income									
taxes	907		(3,819)		1,239				(1,673)
Income (loss) from continuing									
operations	(27,595)		(21,075)		(2,098)		23,376		(27,392)
Income (loss) from discontinued	, , ,		, , ,				,		, , ,
operations, net of tax					(203)				(203)
Net income (loss)	\$ (27,595)	\$	(21,075)	\$	(2,301)	\$	23,376	\$	(27,595)
1.00 m2 m2 (1000)	÷ (21,500)	Ψ	(21,070)	Ψ	(2,501)	Ψ	20,070	Ψ	(27,500)
			22						

UNIFI, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Statement of Operations Information for the Six-Months Ended December 25, 2005 (amounts in thousands):

	Parent	uarantor bsidiaries	Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries		Eliminations		Consolidated	
Summary of Operations:								
Net sales	\$	\$ 325,048	\$	51,025	\$	(1,854)	\$	374,219
Cost of sales		309,674		48,348		(1,576)		356,446
Selling, general and administrative								
expenses	153	18,028		3,138		(371)		20,948
Provision for bad debts		1,098		33				1,131
Interest expense	9,074	364		19				9,457
Interest income	(823)	(92)		(2,555)				(3,470)
Other (income) expense, net	(9,246)	8,074		623				(549)
Equity in (earnings) losses of								
unconsolidated affiliates		(3,508)		1,746		(80)		(1,842)
Equity in subsidiaries	7,059					(7,059)		
Write down of long-lived assets		1,500						1,500
Restructuring charges (recovery)		(53)		82				29
Income (loss) from continuing								
operations before income taxes	(6,217)	(10,037)		(409)		7,232		(9,431)
Provision (benefit) for income								
taxes	637	(3,252)		1,384				(1,231)
Income (loss) from continuing								
operations	(6,854)	(6,785)		(1,793)		7,232		(8,200)
Income (loss) from discontinued								
operations, net of tax		(1,165)		2,511				1,346
Net income (loss)	\$ (6,854)	\$ (7,950)	\$	718	\$	7,232	\$	(6,854)
		23						

Table of Contents

UNIFI, INC. NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Statements of Cash Flows Information for the Six-Months Ended December 24, 2006 (amounts in thousands):

	Parent		Guarantor Subsidiaries		Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries		Eliminations		Consolidated	
Operating activities: Net cash provided by (used in) continuing operating	\$	(610)	\$	5,254	\$	(426)	\$	(68)	\$	4,150
Investing activities: Capital expenditures Acquisition Collection of notes receivable Proceeds from the sale of capital assets Return of capital in equity		234		(1,672) (393) 1,112		(1,669) (706) 30		94		(3,341) (393) 734 30
affiliates Split dollar life insurance premiums Other		(166)		229 (3,380)		3,021		(3)		229 (166) (362)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities		68		(4,104)		676		91		(3,269)
Financing activities: Payment of long-term debt Other		(309)		(290)						(290) (309)
Net cash used in financing activities		(309)		(290)						(599)
Cash flows of discontinued operations: Operating cash flow						(50)				(50)
Net cash used in discontinued operations						(50)				(50)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents						86		(23)		63
		(851)		860		286				295

36

Edgar Filing: UNIFI INC - Form 10-Q	Edgar	Filing:	UNIFI	INC -	Form	10-Q
-------------------------------------	-------	---------	-------	-------	------	------

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	22,992	1,392	10,933		35,317
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$ 22,141	\$ 2,252 24	\$ 11,219	\$ \$	35,612

UNIFI, INC. NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Statements of Cash Flows Information for the Six-Months Ended December 25, 2005 (amounts in thousands):

	Parent	Guarantor Subsidiaries	Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries	Eliminations	Consolidated
Operating activities: Net cash provided by (used in) continuing operating	\$ 27,066	\$ (11,490)	\$ 2,044	\$	\$ 17,620
Investing activities: Capital expenditures Investment in equity affiliates Investment of foreign restricted		(6,962) (388)	(652) (30,000)		(7,614) (30,388)
assets Collection of notes receivable Proceeds from sale of capital	248	(5)	158 (7)		158 236
assets Change in restricted cash Other		2,359 33	17 2,766 (253)	10	2,376 2,766 (210)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities	248	(4,963)	(27,971)	10	(32,676)
Financing activities: Payment of long term debt Other		(24,407) 21,030	(20,980)	(10)	(24,407) 40
Net cash used in financing activities		(3,377)	(20,980)	(10)	(24,367)
Cash flows of discontinued operations: Operating cash flow Investing cash flow		721	(5,361) 23,062		(4,640) 23,062
Net cash provided by discontinued operations		721	17,701		18,422
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents		1	398		399
	27,314	(19,108)	(28,808)		(20,602)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	35,867	25,272	44,482		105,621
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$ 63,181	\$ 6,164 25	\$ 15,674	\$ \$	85,019

Table of Contents

Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following is Management s discussion and analysis of certain significant factors that have affected the Company s operations and material changes in financial condition during the periods included in the accompanying Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

Business Overview

The Company is a diversified producer and processor of multi-filament polyester and nylon yarns, including specialty yarns with enhanced performance characteristics. The Company adds value to the supply chain and enhances customer demand for its products through the development and introduction of branded yarns that provide unique performance, comfort, and aesthetic advantages. The Company manufactures partially oriented, textured, dyed, twisted and beamed polyester yarns as well as textured nylon and covered spandex products. The Company sells its products to other yarn manufacturers, knitters and weavers that produce fabrics for the apparel, hosiery, automotive, home furnishings, industrial, and other end-use markets. The Company maintains one of the industry s most comprehensive product offerings and emphasizes quality, style and performance in all of its products.

Polyester Segment The polyester segment manufactures partially oriented, textured, dyed, twisted and beamed yarns with sales to other yarn manufacturers, knitters and weavers that produce fabrics for the apparel, automotive and furniture upholstery, home furnishings, automotive, industrial and other end-use markets. The polyester segment primarily manufactures its products in Brazil and the United States, which has the largest operations and number of locations.

Nylon Segment The nylon segment manufactures textured nylon and covered spandex products with sales to other yarn manufacturers, knitters and weavers that produce fabrics for the apparel, hosiery, sock and other end-use markets. The nylon segment consists of operations in the United States and Colombia.

Sourcing Segment In July 2005, the Company announced its decision to exit the sourcing business, and as of the end of fiscal year 2006 the Company had fully liquidated the business. All periods have been presented as discontinued operations in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (GAAP).

Recent Developments and Outlook

Although the global textile and apparel industry continues to grow, the North American textile and apparel industry has contracted since 1999, primarily as a result of intense foreign competition in finished goods on the basis of price. This has resulted in ongoing North American domestic overcapacity, many producers moving their operations offshore and the closure of many domestic textile and apparel plants. In addition, due to consumer preference, demand for sheer hosiery products has declined in recent years, which negatively impacts nylon manufacturers. As a result, the contraction in the North American textile and apparel market continues, and the Company expects a similar rate of decline in calendar year 2007 as compared to calendar year 2006, and a lower rate of decline after 2008 as regional manufacturers continue to demand North American manufactured yarn due to duty-free advantage, quick response times, specialized products, and North American retailers expressing their need for a balanced procurement strategy with both global and regional producers.

Because of these general industry trends, the Company s net sales, gross profits and net income have been trending downward for the past several years. The Company believes that its success going forward is primarily based on its ability to improve the mix of its product offerings to shift to more premium value-added products, to take advantage of the free-trade agreements to which the United States is a party and to

26

Table of Contents

implement cost saving strategies that will improve its operating efficiencies. The continued viability of the U.S. domestic textile and apparel industry is dependent, to a large extent, on international trade flows and the trade regulatory environment. Historically, all textile and apparel imports have grown at double-digit average annual rates. However, since last year, this growth has slowed down considerably, with current year-to-date imports growing only by low single-digits, indicating a slow-down in the imports. Current imported yarn represents approximately 25% of yarn consumption in the U.S according to industry experts.

The increased demand for xylenes by the U.S. gasoline-supply chain and tight global supply of paraxylene continued to put pressure on raw materials pricing throughout the first quarter fiscal year 2007 and forced yarn prices up around the world. Polyester raw material prices in the U.S. rose to above post-Hurricane Katrina levels during the first quarter, and prices increased to a fifteen-year high in the month of September 2006. The rising cost of raw materials also resulted in approximately \$1.5 million in unexpected LIFO charges. Although the Company has been successful in passing through price increases on its products, volumes slowed in the U.S. and China during this period as many fabric mills resisted the increases and subsequently reduced orders by working off inventories.

Raw material prices softened during the second quarter of fiscal year 2007. With the end of the U.S. summer driving season, the decline in oil prices, and the easing of the supply of paraxylene, raw material prices declined by 11% compared to the same prior year quarter. Although industry experts expect prices to remain stable during the third quarter of fiscal year 2007, the price of paraxylene is expected to increase over the 2007 summer driving season. Effective January 1, 2007, Unifi Manufacturing Inc. (UMI), one of the Company s wholly owned subsidiaries, completed its acquisition of certain assets and assumed certain liabilities from Dillon Yarn Corporation (Dillon), related to or used in Dillon s textured nylon and polyester yarn businesses. The aggregate consideration paid in connection with the Dillon acquisition was \$62.6 million; consisting of a combination of \$42.1 million in cash, and 8.3 million shares of the Company s common stock valued at \$20.5 million.

On January 2, 2007, the Company notified SANS Fibres that it was exercising its put right to sell its interest in the joint venture. Negotiations to determine an agreeable price for the Company s interest in the joint venture will begin during the Company s third quarter of fiscal year 2007 with an anticipated transaction completion date in the third quarter of fiscal year 2008. The Company does not expect to report a material gain or loss on the transaction.

Key Performance Indicators

The Company continuously reviews performance indicators to measure its success. The following are the indicators management uses to assess performance of the Company s business:

sales volume, which is an indicator of demand;

margins, which are indicators of product mix and profitability;

net income or loss before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) and income or loss from discontinued operations, which are indicators of the Company s ability to pay debt; and

working capital of each business unit as a percentage of sales, which is an indicator of the Company s production efficiency and ability to manage its inventory and receivables.

27

Table of Contents

Corporate

On April 19, 2006, the Board authorized the issuance of one hundred fifty thousand stock options, and on July 26, 2006, the Board authorized the issuance of an additional 1.1 million stock options to certain key employees under the 1999 Long-Term Incentive Plan. The total non-cash charges over the vesting term of the stock options equates to \$2.0 million of which \$1.0 million was charged as stock-based compensation during the quarter ended September 24, 2006 and \$0.1 million was charged as stock-based compensation during the quarter ended June 25, 2006. With the exception of the immediate vesting of three hundred thousand stock options granted to the CEO in the September 24, 2006 quarter, the remaining stock options vest in three equal installments: the first one-third at the time of each grant, the next one-third on the first anniversary of each grant and the final one-third on the second anniversary of each grant. For the fiscal quarter and year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006, the Company expensed \$0.2 million and \$1.2 million, respectively in nonvested stock-based compensation.

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2007, the Company established the *Unifi, Inc. Supplemental Key Employee Retirement Plan* (the Plan), and as a result, recognized \$1.1 million in deferred compensation charges in that quarter. This Plan was established for the purpose of providing supplemental retirement benefits for a small group of management employees. During the quarter ended December 24, 2006, the Company recognized an additional \$0.4 million in expense related to the Plan.

On April 20, 2006, the Company re-organized its domestic business operations, and as a result, recorded a restructuring charge for severance of approximately \$0.8 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2006. Approximately 45 management level salaried employees were affected by this reorganization.

Accrued restructuring relates to lease costs associated with the closure of a facility in Altamahaw, North Carolina. The lease payments are due on a quarterly basis with a final balloon payment due in May 2008.

The table below summarizes changes to the accrued severance and accrued restructuring accounts for the six months ended December 24, 2006 (amounts in thousands):

	Balance at June 25, 2006	Charges	Adjustments	Amounts Used	Balance at December 24, 2006
Accrued severance	\$ 576	\$	\$ 138	\$ (497)	\$ 217
Accrued restructuring	\$ 3,550	\$	\$ 116	\$ (498)	\$ 3,168

Joint Ventures and Other Equity Investments

On June 10, 2005, Unifi and Sinopec Yizheng Chemical Fiber Co., Ltd. (YCFC) entered into an Equity Joint Venture Contract (the JV Contract), to form Yihua Unifi Fibre Company Limited (YUFI) to manufacture, process and market polyester filament yarn in YCFC s facilities in Yizheng, Jiangsu Province, Peoples Republic of China. Under the terms of the JV Contract, each company owns a 50% equity interest in the joint venture. The joint venture transaction closed on August 3, 2005, and accordingly, the Company contributed to YUFI its initial capital contribution of \$15.0 million in cash on August 4, 2005. On October 12, 2005, the Company transferred an additional \$15.0 million to YUFI to complete the capitalization of the joint venture. For the quarter and year-to-date periods ended December 24, 2006, the Company recognized net equity losses relating to YUFI of \$2.1 million and \$3.6 million, respectively, compared to a net equity loss of \$1.0 million for the quarter ended December 25, 2005. Since YUFI reports its financial results on a one month lag, and given the date of the joint venture transaction, the December 25, 2005 year-to-date net equity loss of \$1.1 million is not comparable. The Company also records revenues from the joint venture under a licensing agreement for certain proprietary information including technical knowledge,

28

Table of Contents

manufacturing processes, trade secrets, commercial information and other information relating to the design, manufacture, application testing, maintenance and sale of products. For the quarter and year-to-date periods ended December 24, 2006, the Company recorded \$0.4 million and \$0.8 million, respectively, in revenues from the licensing agreement. In addition, the Company recognized \$1.0 million and \$2.1 million in operating expenses for the second quarter and year-to-date periods of fiscal year 2007, which were primarily reflected on the Cost of sales line item in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations. These expenses are directly related to providing technological support in accordance with the JV Contract.

In June 1997, the Company and Parkdale Mills, Inc. entered into a contribution agreement whereby both companies contributed all of the assets of their spun cotton yarn operations utilizing open-end and air jet spinning technologies to create Parkdale America, LLC (PAL). In exchange for its contributions, the Company received a 34% ownership interest in the joint venture. PAL is a producer of cotton and synthetic yarns for sale to the textile and apparel industries primarily within North America. PAL has 11 manufacturing facilities primarily located in central and western North Carolina. During the second quarter and year-to-date periods ended December 24, 2006, the Company had equity losses relating to PAL of \$0.6 million and \$0.9 million, respectively, compared to earnings of \$1.2 million and \$3.3 million for the corresponding periods in the prior year. PAL has paid the Company \$0.2 million in accumulated distributions during fiscal year 2007.

In September 2000, the Company and SANS Fibres of South Africa formed a 50/50 joint venture (UNIFI-SANS Technical Fibers, LLC or USTF) to produce low-shrinkage high tenacity nylon 6.6 light denier industrial (LDI) yarns in North Carolina. The business is operated in a plant in Stoneville, North Carolina which is owned by the Company. The Company receives annual rental income of \$0.3 million from USTF for the use of the facility. Unifi manages the day-to-day production and shipping of the LDI produced in North Carolina and SANS Fibres handles technical support and sales. Sales from this entity are primarily to customers in the Americas. The Company has a put right under the USTF operating agreement to sell its entire interest in the joint venture at fair market value and the related Stoneville, North Carolina manufacturing facility for \$3.0 million in cash to SANS Fibres. Per the agreement, after December 31, 2006, the Company must give one year s prior written notice of its election to exercise the put option. On January 2, 2007, the Company notified SANS Fibres that it was exercising its put right to sell its interest in the joint venture. Negotiations to determine an agreeable price for the Company s interest in the joint venture will occur during the Company s third quarter of fiscal year 2007 with an anticipated transaction completion date in the first calendar quarter 2008. The Company does not expect to report a material gain or loss on the transaction. In September 2000, Unifi and Nilit Ltd., located in Israel, formed a 50/50 joint venture named U.N.F. Industries Ltd (UNF). The joint venture produces nylon partially oriented yarn (POY) at Nilit s manufacturing facility in Migdal Ha Emek, Israel. The nylon POY is utilized in the Company s nylon texturing and covering operations. The nylon segment has a supply agreement with UNF which expires in April 2008.

29

Table of Contents

Condensed balance sheet information as of December 24, 2006, and income statement information for the quarter and year-to-date periods ended December 24, 2006, of the combined unconsolidated equity affiliates was as follows (amounts in thousands):

			As of December 24, 2006
Current assets Noncurrent assets Current liabilities Noncurrent liabilities Shareholders equity and capital accounts			\$ 153,142 201,233 45,839 12,212 296,324
		For the Quarter Ended December 24, 2006	For the Six-Months Ended December 24, 2006
Net sales Gross profit Loss from operations Net loss	30	\$ 138,170 559 (5,058) (6,363)	\$ 295,357 2,018 (8,956) (10,759)

Table of Contents

Review of Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2007 compared to Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2006

The following table sets forth the loss from continuing operations components for each of the Company s business segments for the second fiscal quarters ended December 24, 2006 and December 25, 2005, respectively. The table also sets forth each of the segments net sales as a percent to total net sales, the net income components as a percent to total net sales and the percentage increase or decrease of such components over the comparable prior year period (amounts in thousands, except percentages):

	For the Quarters Ended				
	December 2		December 2		
		% to		% to	%
		Total		Total	Change
Net sales					
Polyester	\$ 118,507	75.5	\$ 146,789	76.8	(19.3)
Nylon	38,388	24.5	44,328	23.2	(13.4)
Total	\$ 156,895	100.0	\$ 191,117	100.0	(17.9)
		% to		% to	
		Sales		Sales	
Gross profit					
Polyester	\$ 1,199	0.8	\$ 8,020	4.2	(85.1)
Nylon	1,421	0.9	1,350	0.7	5.3
•					
Total	2,620	1.7	9,370	4.9	(72.0)
Selling, general and administrative					
expenses					
Polyester	8,137	5.2	8,299	4.4	(2.0)
Nylon	2,251	1.4	2,162	1.1	4.1
Total	10,388	6.6	10,461	5.5	(0.7)
Write down of long-lived assets					
Polyester	2,002	1.3			
Nylon Corporate					
Corporate					
Total	2,002	1.3			
Other (income) expense, net	7,145	4.5	3,381	1.8	111.3
Loss from continuing operations before					
income taxes and extraordinary item	(16,915)	(10.7)	(4,472)	(2.4)	278.2
Benefit for income taxes	(540)	(0.3)	(1,079)	(0.6)	(50.0)
		•		•	,
Loss from continuing operations before	(16.3==)	(10.1)	(2.222)	(4.0)	202.5
extraordinary item	(16,375)	(10.4)	(3,393)	(1.8)	382.6

45

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax Extraordinary gain net of tax of \$0	(167)	(0.1)	(583) 208	(0.3) 0.1	(71.4)
Net loss	\$ (16,542)	(10.5)	\$ (3,768)	(2.0)	339.1

As reflected in the tables above, consolidated net sales from continuing operations decreased from \$191.1 million to \$157.9 million which was attributable to declines in both the polyester and nylon segments in the second quarter of fiscal year 2007. Consolidated unit volume decreased 21.5% for the second quarter of fiscal year 2007, while average net selling prices increased 3.6% for the same period. In December 2006, the Company announced it had experienced a significant volume decline in its commodity based partially oriented yarn or POY starting in September 2006 and continuing through November 2006. Although raw material prices declined in the December 2006 quarter, the loss of volume was attributable to low demand

31

Table of Contents

from the retail sector, as certain customers worked down excessive inventories that were built during the summer months.

Refer to the discussion of segment operations under the captions Polyester Operations and Nylon Operations for a further discussion of each segment s operating results.

Consolidated gross profit from continuing operations was \$2.6 million for the quarter ended December 24, 2006 compared to \$9.4 million for the quarter ended December 25, 2005, and decreased 3.2% as a percentage of net sales. Although selling prices increased for the quarter, gross margins were negatively affected by lower sales volumes resulting in the lower absorption of fixed and allocated manufacturing costs and higher raw material costs from the first quarter passing through costs of goods sold. These factors resulted in a decline in consolidated gross margin on a per pound basis of 64%.

Consolidated selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&A) decreased slightly by \$0.1 million or 0.7% for the second quarter of fiscal year 2007 as compared to the prior year second quarter, and as a percentage of sales increased 1.1% when compared to the same periods. Domestically, the decrease in SG&A of \$0.4 million for the quarter was primarily a result of decreases in salary fringes, legal and audit related professional fees, depreciation expense, and internal development expenses. These decreases were partially offset by increased stock-based compensation and deferred compensation charges. SG&A related to our foreign operations remained consistent with the prior year quarter amounts.

In November 2006, the Company s Brazilian operation decided to modernize its facilities by replacing ten of its older machines with newer machines purchased from the domestic polyester division. These machine purchases will allow the Brazilian facility to produce tailor made products at higher speeds resulting in lower costs and increased competitiveness. In connection with the preparation of the financial statements included in this report, the Company concluded that it was required to recognize a \$2.0 million impairment charge on the older machines in the second quarter ended December 24, 2006. The impairment charge is related to the book value of the machines and the related dismantling and removal costs.

Other (income) expense, net includes equity in (earnings) losses of unconsolidated affiliates, interest expense, interest income, bad debt expense, and restructuring charges. The increased net expenses in the second quarter of fiscal year 2007 were primarily attributable to reductions of income of unconsolidated affiliates of \$2.9 million, increased interest expense of \$1.4 million, and decreased interest income of \$1.1 million offset by decreased bad debt expense of \$1.6 million.

As a result of the above items, loss from continuing operations before income taxes increased in the second quarter of fiscal year 2007 as compared to the prior year quarter by \$12.4 million.

The Company s income tax benefit for the quarter ended December 24, 2006 resulted in an effective tax rate of 3.0% compared to a 24.1% benefit for the quarter ended December 25, 2005. The primary differences between the Company s income tax benefit and the U.S. statutory rate for the quarter were losses from certain foreign operations taxed at a lower effective rate and increases in the valuation allowance for North Carolina income tax credit carryforwards and capital losses.

Deferred income taxes have been provided for the temporary differences between financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities. The Company has established a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets for North Carolina income tax credit carryforwards and capital losses. The valuation allowance had a net increase of \$5.1 million at December 24, 2006 compared to a net increase of \$0.1 million at December 25, 2005. The increase for the quarter resulted from expirations and lower estimates of future utilization of North Carolina income tax credit carryforwards as well as a complete offset of deductible temporary differences with respect to certain capital losses.

32

Table of Contents

On July 28, 2005, the Company announced that it would discontinue the operations of the Company's external sourcing business, Unimatrix Americas. As of March 26, 2006, management s plan to exit the business was successfully completed resulting in the reclassification of the segment s losses as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

The loss from discontinued operations for the second quarter of fiscal year 2007 was primarily due to wind up activities associated with the Ireland facility and currency translation adjustments related to all foreign discontinued operations. Comparatively, income from discontinued operations, net of tax for the second quarter of fiscal year 2006 included the same activities with the addition of the sourcing business activities discussed above.

The extraordinary gain in the prior year second quarter was the result of a favorable settlement related to the termination of two warehouse leases in Kinston, North Carolina that were previously reserved at full value. The gain recorded in the prior year second quarter was offset by the loss recorded in the prior year first quarter.

Polyester Operations

Polyester unit volume decreased 21.8% for the second quarter, while average net selling prices increased 2.5% compared to the second quarter of fiscal year 2006. Net sales for the polyester segment for the second quarter of fiscal year 2007 decreased 19.3% as compared to the same quarter in the prior year. This decrease was primarily due to the low demand from the retail sector and reduced orders as certain customers worked down excessive inventories that were built up during the summer months.

Sales in local currency for the Brazilian operation increased 9.3% for the second quarter of fiscal year 2007 compared to the prior year quarter due to an increase in average selling prices of 2.1% and an increase in unit volumes of 7.1%. The movement in currency exchange rates from the prior year to the current year positively impacted the second quarter of fiscal year 2007 sales translated to U.S. dollars for the Brazilian operation. As a result of the increase in the Brazilian currency exchange rate, U.S. dollar net sales for the quarter period were higher by \$1.1 million than what sales would have been using prior year currency rates.

Gross profit for the polyester segment in the second quarter decreased \$6.8 million from the same prior year period. Although average selling prices increased, the effect of reduced volumes and the prior quarter s increased raw material prices negatively impacted gross margins on a per pound basis by 81%.

SG&A expenses for the second quarter of fiscal year 2007 were \$8.1 million compared to the prior year amount of \$8.3 million. The decline was a result of decreases in salary fringes, legal and audit related professional fees, depreciation expense, and internal development expenses which were offset by increased stock-based and deferred compensation charges included in domestic SG&A.

Nylon Operations

Nylon segment volume for the second quarter period of fiscal year 2007 decreased 18.9% compared to the same prior year quarter. While average selling prices increased 5.5%, net sales decreased 13.4%. The decrease in net sales for the second quarter of fiscal year 2007 as compared to the prior year period was primarily due to low market demands. Gross profit for the nylon segment remained relatively flat compared to the prior year second quarter. The nylon segment was able to maintain its margins with cost reduction efforts, improved product mix and increased selling prices in spite of a notification in January 2007 of \$2.0 million in additional energy charges related to a meter that had not been working properly over the past eight months.

33

SG&A expenses allocated to the nylon segment increased \$0.1 million to \$2.3 million for the second quarter of fiscal year 2007, compared to the prior year second quarter. However, SG&A expenses as a percentage of nylon net sales were 5.9% for the second quarter of fiscal year 2007 compared to 4.9% for the second quarter of the prior year. The increase in this percentage was a result of lower net sales.

Review of Year-To-Date Fiscal Year 2007 compared to Year-To-Date Fiscal Year 2006

The following table sets forth the loss from continuing operations components for each of the Company s business segments for the year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006 and December 25, 2005, respectively. The table also sets forth each of the segments net sales as a percent to total net sales, the net income components as a percent to total net sales and the percentage increase or decrease of such components over the comparable prior year period (amounts in thousands, except percentages):

		For the Six-N	Months Ended		
	December 2	24, 2006	December	25, 2005	
		% to		% to	%
		Total		Total	Change
Net sales					
Polyester	\$ 248,978	76.2	\$ 280,957	75.1	(11.4)
Nylon	77,861	23.8	93,262	24.9	(16.5)
Total	\$ 326,839	100.0	\$ 374,219	100.0	(12.7)
		% to		% to	
		Sales		Sales	
Gross profit					
Polyester	\$ 8,340	2.6	\$ 15,147	4.0	(44.9)
Nylon	3,320	1.0	2,626	0.7	26.4
Total	11,660	3.6	17,773	4.7	(34.4)
Selling, general and administrative					
expenses Polyester	16,957	5.2	16,575	4.4	2.3
Nylon	4,720	1.4	4,373	1.2	7.9
Tylon	7,720	1,7	7,575	1.2	1.5
Total	21,677	6.6	20,948	5.6	3.5
Write down of long-lived assets					
Polyester	2,002	0.6			
Nylon			1,500	0.4	
Corporate	1,200	0.4			
Total	3,202	1.0	1,500	0.4	113.5
Restructuring charges (recovery)					
Polyester			47		
Nylon			(18)		

Edgar Filing: UNIFI INC - Form 10-Q

Total			29		
Other (income) expense, net	15,846	4.8	4,727	1.3	235.2
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes and extraordinary item Benefit for income taxes	(29,065) (1,673)	(8.8) (0.5)	(9,431) (1,231)	(2.6) (0.3)	208.2 35.9
Loss from continuing operations before extraordinary item	(27,392)	(8.4)	(8,200)	(2.3)	234.0
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax	(203)		1,346	0.4	(115.1)
Net loss	\$ (27,595)	(8.4)	\$ (6,854)	(1.9)	302.6
	34				

Table of Contents

As reflected in the tables above, consolidated net sales from continuing operations decreased from \$374.2 million to \$326.8 million which was attributable to declines in both the polyester and nylon segments for the current year-to-date period. Consolidated unit volume decreased 15.7% for the current year-to-date period, while average net selling prices increased 3.0% for the same period. Refer to the discussion of segment operations under the captions Polyester Operations and Nylon Operations for a further discussion of each segment s operating results.

Consolidated gross profit from continuing operations was \$11.7 million for current year-to-date period compared to \$17.8 million for the prior year-to-date period and decreased 1.1% as a percentage of net sales. On a per pound basis, gross margin declined 22% for the comparable year-to-date periods. The decrease in gross profit for the current year-to-date period was primarily due to the reduced absorption of fixed costs resulting from lower sales volumes and higher raw material prices experienced in the first quarter of fiscal year 2007.

Consolidated selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&A) increased \$0.7 million or 3.5% for the year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006 as compared to the prior year comparable period and as a percentage of sales increased 1.0% when compared to the same period. Domestically, the increase in SG&A of \$0.4 million for the current year-to-date period was primarily a result of increased stock-based compensation and deferred compensation charges. These charges were partially offset by decreases in salary fringes, legal and audit related professional fees, depreciation expense, and internal development expenses. SG&A related to the Company s foreign operations remained consistent with the prior year-to-date amounts.

On October 26, 2006, the Company announced its intent to sell a manufacturing facility that the Company had leased to a tenant since 1999. As a result of its decision, the Company performed an impairment review and recorded a \$1.2 million impairment charge during the first quarter of fiscal year 2007. For further discussion see the Recent Developments and Outlook section.

Other (income) expense, net includes equity in (earnings) losses of unconsolidated affiliates, interest expense, interest income, bad debt expense, and restructuring charges. The increased net expenses in the year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006 were primarily attributable to reductions of income of unconsolidated affiliates of \$6.7 million, increased interest expense of \$2.7 million, decreased interest income of \$1.9 million, and decreased other income of \$0.3 million offset by decreased bad debt expense of \$0.5 million.

As a result of the above items, loss from continuing operations before income taxes increased in the current year-to-date period as compared to the prior year-to-date period by \$19.6 million.

The Company s income tax benefit for the year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006 resulted in an effective tax rate of 5.8% compared to a 13.0% benefit for the year-to-date period ended December 25, 2005. The primary differences between the Company s income tax benefit and the U.S. statutory rate for the year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006 were losses from certain foreign operations taxed at a lower effective rate and increases in the valuation allowance for North Carolina income tax credit carryforwards and capital losses.

Deferred income taxes have been provided for the temporary differences between financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities. The Company has established a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets for North Carolina income tax credit carryforwards and capital assets. The valuation allowance had a net increase of \$5.1 million at December 24, 2006 compared to an increase of \$0.4 million at December 25, 2005. The increase for the year-to-date period resulted from

35

Table of Contents

lower estimates of future utilization of North Carolina income tax credit carryforwards as well as a complete offset of deductible temporary differences with respect to certain capital losses.

The loss from discontinued operations for the current year-to-date period was primarily due to wind up activities associated with the Ireland facility and currency translation adjustments related to all foreign discontinued operations. Comparatively, income from discontinued operations, net of tax for the current year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006 was \$1.5 million less than the prior year-to-date period due primarily to the reduction in wind up sales of miscellaneous assets of the Irish facility and the reclassification of the sourcing segment losses to discontinued operations.

Polyester Operations

Polyester unit volume decreased 15.5% for the year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006, while average net selling prices increased 4.1% compared to the prior year-to-date period. The decrease in net sales of \$32.0 million for the year-to-date period of fiscal year 2007 as compared to the prior year period was primarily due to lower volumes related to low demands in the domestic textured polyester operations and customer price increases for polyester raw materials.

Sales in local currency for the Brazilian operation increased 14.4% for the year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006 compared to the prior year due to an increase in average selling prices of 2.8% and an increase in unit volumes of 11.3%. The movement in currency exchange rates from the prior year-to-date period to the current year-to-date period positively impacted the current year-to-date period sales translated to U.S. dollars for the Brazilian operation. As a result of the increase in the Brazilian currency exchange rate, U.S. dollar net sales for the period were \$3.3 million higher than what sales would have been using prior year currency rates.

Gross profit for the polyester segment for the year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006 decreased \$6.8 million from the same prior year-to-date period. Although selling prices have increased for the comparable year-to-date periods, the increased cost of raw materials coupled with the decline in volumes has eroded margins on a per pound basis by 35%.

SG&A expenses for the year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006 were \$17.0 million compared to the prior year-to-date period amount of \$16.6 million, an increase of \$0.4 million for the polyester segment, compared to consolidated SG&A which increased \$0.7 million. SG&A expenses as a percentage of polyester net sales were 6.8% for the current year-to-date period compared to 5.9% for the prior year-to-date period. See discussions on consolidated year-to-date SG&A above. As discussed above, the Company s Brazilian operation recognized a \$2.0 million impairment charge which included the book value of ten abandoned machines and the related dismantling and removal costs.

Nylon Operations

Nylon segment volume for the year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006 decreased 17.3% when compared to the corresponding prior year-to-date period. While average selling prices increased 0.8%, net sales for the nylon segment decreased 16.5%. This decrease was primarily due to low customer demand.

Gross profit for the nylon segment increased \$0.7 million to \$3.3 million in the current year-to-date period compared to the prior year-to-date period. The increase in gross profit is attributable primarily to cost savings from recent consolidation efforts and an improvement in product mix.

SG&A expenses allocated to the nylon segment increased \$0.3 million to \$4.7 million for the current year-to-date period compared to the prior year-to-date period. As a percentage of nylon net sales, SG&A expenses were 6.1% in the current year compared to 4.7% in the prior year. See consolidated SG&A for detailed discussions.

36

Table of Contents

During the first quarter of fiscal year 2006, management decided to consolidate the domestic nylon operations to improve overall operating efficiencies. This initiative included closing Plant 1 in Mayodan, North Carolina and moving its operations and offices to Plant 3 in Madison, North Carolina which is the Nylon division s largest facility with over one million square feet of production space. As a part of the consolidation plan, three nylon facilities were vacated and classified as held for sale later in fiscal year 2006. The Company received appraisals on the three properties, and after reviewing the reports, determined that one of the facilities carrying value exceeded its appraised value. As a result of this determination, the Company recorded a non-cash impairment charge of \$1.5 million in the first quarter of fiscal year 2006 which included \$0.2 million of estimated selling costs.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Provided By Continuing Operations

Cash provided by continuing operations was \$4.1 million for the year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006, compared to cash provided by continuing operations of \$17.6 million for the corresponding period of the prior year. The primary reasons for the \$13.5 million decrease in cash from operating activities relate to increased net losses, decreased depreciation and amortization, decreased split dollar life insurance proceeds, and decreased bad debt expenses of \$20.7 million, \$3.3 million, \$1.0 million, and \$0.5 million, respectively. These amounts were offset by increased losses on equity affiliates, increased in write downs of long-lived assets, increased losses on discontinued operations, increased other expenses, increased stock based compensation, decreased working capital, decreased deferred taxes and increased losses on asset sales of \$4.5 million, \$1.7 million, \$1.5 million, \$1.3 million, \$0.9 million, \$0.6 million, and \$0.6 million, respectively. All working capital changes have been adjusted to exclude currency translation effects.

The primary reason for the decline in cash from operations relates to the increased net losses. The Company s net sales, gross profits and net income have declined for the current year-to-date period compared to the prior year-to-date period. Although raw material prices declined during the second quarter of fiscal year 2007, the increased demand for xylenes by the U.S. gasoline-supply chain and tight global supply of paraxylene continued to put pressure on raw materials pricing throughout the first quarter of fiscal year 2007 resulting in reduced contribution margins year-to-date. The Company has been successful in passing through price increases on its products; however, volumes slowed in the U.S. and China during the second quarter as many fabric mills resisted the increases and subsequently reduced orders by working off excess inventories. As a result, cash from operations was negatively impacted as the Company consumed higher-priced inventory on a first-in, first-out basis during the quarter. These declines in volumes and increased raw material pricing significantly reduced the Company s cash flows from operations. In early January 2007, the Company surrendered a majority of its split dollar life insurance policies and received \$1.7 million in cash.

Cash distributions from equity affiliates declined \$0.9 million from \$1.1 million to \$0.2 million for the current year-to-date period as compared to the prior year-to-date period. The decline in cash distributions was partially attributable to the increased losses from equity affiliates of \$6.7 million for the current year-to-date period over the prior year-to-date period primarily relating to PAL.

Working capital cash inflows primarily relate to reductions in trades receivables of \$16.0 million and inventories of \$1.0 million offset by cash payments for accounts payable and accruals of \$13.2 million, income taxes payable of \$1.9 million, and prepaid expenses of \$0.5 million. The cash used in accounts payable and accruals related to reductions of raw material purchases, payroll, severance, and fringe benefit accruals.

37

Table of Contents

On November 15, 2006 the Company paid the first interest payment on the \$190.0 million senior secured notes of \$10.9 million compared to \$8.1 million made on the \$250.0 million senior, unsecured notes during the same prior year-to-date period.

The Company ended the second quarter of fiscal year 2007 with working capital of \$179.7 million, which included cash and cash equivalents of \$35.6 million, compared to working capital at June 25, 2006 of \$179.5 million. The current ratio (current assets/current liabilities) increased from 2.8 as of June 25, 2006 to 3.1 as of December 24, 2006.

Cash Used In Investing and Financing Activities

The Company utilized \$3.3 million for net investing activities and \$0.6 million in net financing activities during the year-to-date period ended December 24, 2006. The primary cash expenditures for investing and financing activities during this period included \$3.3 million for capital expenditures, \$0.4 million for acquisition related expenses, \$0.4 million for other expenses, \$0.3 million of long-term debt payments, \$0.3 in payments of bond issuance costs and \$0.2 million for net split dollar life insurance premiums for former employees, offset by \$0.7 million receipts from notes receivable, and \$0.3 million in return of capital from equity affiliates. As of December 24, 2006, the Company is not committed to make any significant capital expenditures, however it expects to spend approximately \$12 to \$15 million primarily for maintenance capital expenditures and equipment and technology upgrades during the remainder of fiscal year 2007.

The Company believes that cash generated by operations, together with access to its amended revolving credit agreement (the Amended Credit Agreement) as described below, will be sufficient to meet all operating and capital needs in the foreseeable future.

Long-Term Debt

In May 2006, the Company amended its asset-based revolving credit facility with a senior secured asset-based revolving credit facility to provide a \$100 million revolving borrowing base (with an option to increase borrowing capacity up to \$150 million), to extend its maturity from 2006 to 2011, and to revise some of its other terms and covenants. The Amended Credit Agreement is secured by first-priority liens on the Company s and its subsidiary guarantors inventory, accounts receivable, general intangibles (other than uncertificated capital stock of subsidiaries and other persons), investment property (other than capital stock of subsidiaries and other persons), chattel paper, documents, instruments, supporting obligations, letter of credit rights, deposit accounts and other related personal property and all proceeds relating to any of the above, and by second-priority liens, subject to permitted liens, on the Company s and its subsidiary guarantors assets securing its 11.5% senior secured notes and guarantees on a first-priority basis, in each case other than certain excluded assets. The Company s ability to borrow under the Company s Amended Credit Agreement is limited to a borrowing base equal to specified percentages of eligible accounts receivable and inventory and is subject to other conditions and limitations.

As of December 24, 2006, the Company had no outstanding borrowings and had availability of approximately \$82.8 million under the terms of the Amended Credit Agreement. Borrowings under the amended Credit Agreement bear interest at rates selected periodically by the Company of LIBOR plus 1.50% to 2.25% and/or prime plus 0.00% to 0.50%. The interest rate matrix is based on the Company s excess availability under the Amended Credit Agreement. The interest rate in effect at December 24, 2006, was 6.6%. Under the Amended Credit Agreement, the Company pays an unused line fee ranging from 0.25% to 0.35% per annum of the borrowing base.

On January 2, 2007, the Company borrowed \$43.0 million under the Amended Credit Agreement in connection with its acquisition of Dillon. The borrowings were derived from two separate LIBOR rate

38

Table of Contents

revolving loans; a \$15.0 million, 6.576%, thirty day loan and a \$28.0 million, 6.596%, 60 day loan. The Company intends to renew the loans as they come due reducing the outstanding borrowings as cash generated from operations becomes available.

On May 26, 2006, the Company issued \$190 million of 11.5% senior secured notes (2014 notes) which mature on May 15, 2014. These notes were issued to substantially replace \$250 million of senior, unsecured debt securities that were due February 2008. The 2014 notes and guarantees are secured by first-priority liens, subject to permitted liens, on substantially all of the Company s and the Company s subsidiary guarantors assets (other than the assets securing the Company s obligations under the Company s Amended Credit Agreement on a first-priority basis, which consist primarily of accounts receivable and inventory), including, but not limited to, property, plant and equipment, the capital stock of the Company s domestic subsidiaries and certain of the Company s joint ventures and up to 65% of the voting stock of the Company's first-tier foreign subsidiaries, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, except for certain excluded assets. The 2014 notes are unconditionally guaranteed on a senior, secured basis by each of the Company s existing and future restricted domestic subsidiaries. The 2014 notes and guarantees are secured by second-priority liens, subject to permitted liens, on the Company and its subsidiary guarantors assets that will secure the notes and guarantees on a first-priority basis. The Company may redeem some or all of the 2014 notes on or after May 15, 2010. In addition, prior to May 15, 2009, the Company may redeem up to 35% of the principal amount of the 2014 notes with the proceeds of certain equity offering. The estimated fair value of the 2014 notes, based on quoted market prices, at December 24, 2006 and June 25, 2006, was approximately \$172.0 million and \$182.4 million, respectively. The Company makes semi-annual interest payments of \$10.9 million on the fifteenth business day of November and May.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company is not a party to any off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current or future material effect on the Company s financial condition, revenues, expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

Forward-Looking Statements

Forward-looking statements are those that do not relate solely to historical fact. They include, but are not limited to, any statement that may predict, forecast, indicate or imply future results, performance, achievements or events. They may contain words such as believe, anticipate, expect, estimate, intend, project, plan, will, or words or similar meaning. They may relate to:

the competitive nature of the textile industry and the impact of worldwide competition;

changes in the trade regulatory environment and governmental policies and legislation;

the availability, sourcing and pricing of raw materials;

general domestic and international economic and industry conditions in markets where the Company competes, such as recession and other economic and political factors over which the Company has no control;

changes in consumer spending, customer preferences, fashion trends and end-uses;

its ability to reduce production costs;

its ability to invest in new acquisitions and long-lived assets;

39

Table of Contents

changes in currency exchange rates, interest and inflation rates;

the financial condition of its customers;

technological advancements and the continued availability of financial resources to fund capital expenditures;

the operating performance of joint ventures, alliances and other equity investments;

the impact of environmental, health and safety regulations; and

employee relations.

These forward-looking statements reflect the Company's current views with respect to future events and are based on assumptions and subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially from trends, plans or expectations set forth in the forward-looking statements. New risks can emerge from time to time. It is not possible for the Company to predict all of these risks, nor can it assess the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ from those contained in forward-looking statements. The Company will not update these forward-looking statements, even if its situation changes in the future, except as required by federal securities laws.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The Company is exposed to market risks associated with changes in interest rates, currency fluctuation rates, raw material supplies and inflation which may adversely affect its financial position, results of operations and Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. In addition, the Company is also exposed to other risks in the operation of its business.

Interest Rate Risk: The Company is exposed to interest rate risk through its various borrowing activities. Substantially all of the Company s borrowings are in long-term fixed rate bonds. Therefore, the market rate risk associated with a 100 basis point change in interest rates would not be material to the Company at the present time.

Currency Fluctuation Rate Risk: The Company conducts its business in various foreign currencies. As a result, it is subject to the transaction exposure that arises from foreign exchange rate movements between the dates that foreign currency transactions are recorded (export sales and purchase commitments) and the dates they are settled (cash receipts and cash disbursements in foreign currencies). The Company utilizes some natural hedging to mitigate these transaction exposures. The Company also enters into foreign currency forward contracts for the purchase and sale of European, Canadian, Brazilian and other currencies to hedge balance sheet and income statement currency exposures. These contracts are principally entered into for the purchase of inventory and equipment and the sale of Company products into export markets. Counterparties for these instruments are major financial institutions.

Currency forward contracts are entered into to hedge exposure for sales in foreign currencies based on specific sales orders with customers or for anticipated sales activity for a future time period. Generally, 50% of the sales value of these orders is covered by forward contracts. Maturity dates of the forward contracts attempt to match anticipated receivable collections. The Company marks the outstanding accounts receivable and forward contracts to market at month end and any realized and unrealized gains or losses are recorded as other income and expense. The Company also enters currency forward contracts for committed or anticipated equipment and inventory purchases. Generally, 50% of the asset cost is covered by forward contracts although 100% of the asset cost may be covered by contracts in certain instances. Forward contracts are matched with the anticipated date of delivery of the assets and gains and losses are recorded as

40

Table of Contents

a component of the asset cost for purchase transactions when the Company is firmly committed. The latest maturity date for all outstanding purchase and sales foreign currency forward contracts is February 2007.

The dollar equivalent of these forward currency contracts and their related fair values are detailed below (amounts in thousands):

	December 24, 2006			June 25, 2006	
Foreign currency purchase contracts:					
Notional amount	\$	916	\$	526	
Fair value		925		535	
Net (gain) loss	\$	(9)	\$	(9)	
Foreign currency sales contracts:					
Notional amount	\$	611	\$	833	
Fair value		423		878	
Net (gain) loss	\$	(188)	\$	45	

For the quarters ended December 24, 2006 and December 25, 2005, the total impact of foreign currency related items on the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations, including transactions that were hedged and those that were not hedged, was a pre-tax income of \$0.1 million and \$0.0, respectively. For the year-to-date periods ended December 24, 2006 and December 25, 2005, the total impact of foreign currency related items was pre-tax income of \$0.1 million and pre-tax loss of \$0.1 million, respectively.

Raw Material Supply: The Company depends on a limited number of third parties for certain of its raw material supplies. Although alternative sources of raw materials exist, the Company may not continue to be able to obtain adequate supplies of such materials on acceptable terms, or at all, from other sources when its existing supply agreements expire. In addition, the Company in the past and may in the future experience interruptions or limitations in the supply of raw materials, which would increase its product costs and could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Inflation and Other Risks: The inflation rate in most countries the Company conducts business has been low in recent years and the impact on the Company s cost structure has not been significant. The Company is also exposed to political risk, including changing laws and regulations governing international trade such as quotas and tariffs and tax laws. The degree of impact and the frequency of these events cannot be predicted.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the Company s financial statements filed pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the

Exchange Act) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported in a timely manner, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company s management, specifically including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

The Company carries out a variety of on-going procedures, under the supervision and with the participation of the Company s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company s disclosure controls and procedures. Based on the foregoing, the Company s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of December 24, 2006.

41

Table of Contents

There has been no change in the Company s internal control over financial reporting during the Company s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company s internal controls over financial reporting.

42

Table of Contents

Part II. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

There are no pending legal proceedings, other than ordinary routine litigation incidental to the Company s business, to which the Company is a party or of which any of its property is the subject.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Except as stated below, there have been no material changes in the Company s risk factors from those disclosed in Part I, Item 1A. Risk Factors in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 25, 2006. Those risk factors could materially affect the Company s business, financial condition and future results and should be carefully considered. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to management or that it currently deems to be immaterial also may materially adversely affect the Company s business, financial condition and operating results. The Company may not be able to realize in full all of the benefits that it anticipates from the Dillon acquisition. The value of the Company s common stock could be affected by its inability to achieve the benefits expected from the Dillon acquisition. Achieving these benefits will depend in part upon meeting the challenges inherent in the successful combination of two businesses, including the possible inability to integrate the operations of Dillon into the Company s operations. The Company may not be able to meet these challenges, which could have a material adverse effect on its operations following the Dillon acquisition.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds Items 2(a) and (b) are not applicable.

(c) The following table summarizes the Company s repurchases of its common stock during the quarter ended December 24, 2006:

				Total Number	Maximum
				of	Number
		Total		Shares	of Shares that
		Number		Purchased as	May
				Part of	Yet Be
		of		Publicly	Purchased
			Average Price	Announced	Under the Plans
		Shares	Paid	Plans	or
	Period	Purchased	per Share	or Programs	Programs
09/25/06	10/24/06				6,807,241
10/25/06	11/24/06				6,807,241
11/25/06	12/24/06				6,807,241

Total

On April 25, 2003, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had reinstituted the Company s previously authorized stock repurchase plan at its meeting on April 24, 2003. The plan was originally announced by the Company on July 26, 2000 and authorized the Company to repurchase up to 10.0 million shares of its common stock. During fiscal years 2001, 2003, and 2004, the Company repurchased approximately 1.4 million, 1.3 million, and 0.5 million shares, respectively. The repurchase program was suspended in November 2003 and the Company has no immediate plans to reinstitute the program. There is

43

Table of Contents

remaining authority for the Company to repurchase approximately 6.8 million shares of its common stock under the repurchase plan. The repurchase plan has no stated expiration or termination date.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

Not applicable.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

The Shareholders of the Company at their Annual Meeting on the 25th day of October 2006, elected the following directors to serve until the Annual Meeting of the Shareholders in 2007 or until their successors are elected and qualified.

	Votes	Votes
Name of Director	in Favor	Withheld
William J. Armfield, IV	43,183,354	4,197,030
R. Wiley Bourne, Jr.	43,596,281	3,784,103
Charles R. Carter	44,054,250	3,326,134
Sue W. Cole	44,056,844	3,323,540
J. B. Davis	34,538,900	12,841,484
Kenneth G. Langone	46,060,369	1,320,015
Donald F. Orr	38,124,215	9,256,169
Brian R. Parke	43,996,750	3,383,634

Item 5. Other Information

Not applicable.

Item 6. Exhibits

- 2.1 Asset Purchase Agreement between Unifi Manufacturing, Inc. and Dillon Yarn Corporation, dated as of October 25, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 25, 2006).
- 2.2 Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement between Unifi Manufacturing, Inc. and Dillon Yarn Corporation, dated as of January 1, 2007 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 1, 2007).
- 4.1 Registration Rights Agreement between Unifi, Inc. and Dillon Yarn Corporation, dated as of January 1, 2007 (incorporated by reference from Exhibit 7.1 to the Company s Schedule 13D dated January 2, 2007).
- 31.1 Chief Executive Officer s certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 31.2 Chief Financial Officer s certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 32.1 Chief Executive Officer s certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 32.2 Chief Financial Officer s certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

44

Table of Contents

UNIFI, INC.

Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

UNIFI, INC.

Date: February 2, 2007

/s/ WILLIAM M. LOWE, JR.

William M. Lowe, Jr.
Vice President, Chief Operating Officer
and Chief Financial Officer (Mr. Lowe is
the Principal Financial Officer and has
been duly authorized to sign on behalf of
the Registrant.)

45